Annex No 5/5 to Order No 160 of 31.10.2019 p.

Competitive program

# Ukrainian Cultural Foundation Audiovisual Arts

# **Guidelines for applicants**

LOT 5 Video games and applications

### Dear colleagues,

The Guidelines will help to better understand the terms and opportunities of the «Video content for alternative media platforms» LOT of the "Audiovisual Arts" competitive program, as well as to plan to submit your project for grant from the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation.

It is recommended that you read the Guidelines carefully and use them when filling in your project application and cost estimate.

donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

### Table of contents

I. Regulations in accordance with which the Guidelines were developed:	3
II. About the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation	4
III. Glossary of "Audiovisual Arts" program	6
IV. About "Audiovisual Arts" program	9
V. About LOT «Video games and applications»	11
VI. Project types	12
VII. Requirements to applicants and partners	14
VIII. Required documents for submission of the application package of «Video games and applications» LOT	15
IX. How to submit an application package to a competitive program	15
X. Stages of the competition and criteria for technical selection of projects	20
XI. Evaluation of projects by experts of the UCF expert councils	21
XII. Grant management rules	25
XIII. Reporting procedure	26
XIV. Checklist for applicants	29
XV.Annex 1	30
XVI.Annex 2	31
XVII. Annex 3	33
XVIII. Annex 4	34
XIX. Annex 5	35
XX. Annex 6	36

# All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

I. Regulations in accordance with which the Guidelines were developed:

- The Law of Ukraine "On the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation";
- <u>Regulations on the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation;</u>
- <u>Strategy of the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation for 2019-2021 "Culture and</u> <u>Creativity for Understanding and Development";</u>
- <u>Communication strategy of the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation;</u>
- <u>Procedure for competitive selection of projects;</u>
- Regulation on expert councils of the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation;
- Expert evaluation methodology;
- <u>Procedure for the notification of conflict of interests that arose during the</u> <u>competitive selection and funding of projects by the Ukrainian Cultural</u> <u>Foundation;</u>
- <u>Procedure for control over the performance of obligations to the Ukrainian</u> <u>Cultural Foundation by entities that receive funding.</u>

**II.** About the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation

**Ukrainian Cultural Foundation** (hereinafter referred to as the **Foundation** or **UCF**) is a public institution established in 2017 as a new model of providing statelevel support and promotion of initiatives in the cultural and creative industries on a competitive basis. The Foundation's activities, in accordance with current legislation, are an integral part of the policy and identified priorities of the Ministry of Culture, Youth and Sports of Ukraine.

**Culture and creativity for understanding and development** is the main slogan of the Foundation included in the title of the Strategy 2019-2021.

The main strategic goals that the Foundation aims to achieve during the threeyear strategy implementation include:

- promote the creation of a cultural product;
- strengthen the role of culture in the development of society;
- internationalize the Ukrainian culture;
- increase institutional and financial capacity

The Foundation's competitive and institutional programs **are tools for** achieving the Foundation's strategic goals. You can find out more about the Foundation's activities at our <u>official website</u>.

On the UCF's information and analytical resource <u>Ukraine.Culture.Creativity</u> you can find a calendar of grants that support cultural projects, complete a profile of your organization to find partnerships, and find texts on current trends in the cultural and arts sectors in Ukraine and the world.

We also encourage you to subscribe to the <u>Foundation's official Facebook page</u>, which provides up-to-date information on our activities and opportunities for applicants.

Our actual address: 01010, Ukraine, Kyiv, 10-12 Lavrska str. Our legal address: 01030, Ukraine, Kyiv, 19 I. Franko str. Our email: info@ucf.in.ua Email of "Audiovisual Arts" Program: programa.kino@ucf.in.ua

### **Important documents:**

- all the rules and requirements for the application package are given in these Guidelines;
- information on the competitive selection stages in the Procedure for the competitive selection of projects;
- ✤ information on the selection and procedure of the Foundation's Expert

# All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

Councils - in the Regulation on the Expert Councils of the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation;

 information on project evaluation criteria is provided in the Expert Evaluation Methodology.

To get advice on the rules and requirements for competitive selection, the Foundation conducts information sessions and webinars for applicants. The UCF has also developed a <u>number of videos</u> on the Foundation's programs, a set of <u>training videos with the Foundation's experts</u>, and a practical course "<u>Very Cultural</u> <u>Management</u>". We also encourage you to use the Foundation's <u>FAQs</u>

### Note!

The Foundation's staff do not provide individual advice to applicants, nor do they provide legal advice and advice on accounting and payment of taxes, fees and compulsory payments.

If you have any questions about the grant taxation, we encourage you to contact the tax authorities.

III. Glossary of "Audiovisual Arts" program

For the purposes of these Guidelines and the relevant competitive program, the following terms are used:

**Competitive program** is a set of tasks and activities, united by a single ideologicalthematic concept implemented in order to achieve the vision, mission and goals defined by the Foundation's strategy and bearing a common title.

**LOT** is a part of the competitive program aimed at solving problems and supporting projects in a specific area within this competitive program.

**Applicant** is a legal entity or an individual participating in the competitive selection of projects by submitting an application package.

**Partner** is a legal entity or an individual who is in a contractual relationship with the applicant and is a project participant/co-executor.

**Application package** is a package of documents consisting of the project application, project estimates and other documents provided by the Instruction for the applicants of the relevant competitive program.

**Competitive selection of projects** (hereinafter - **Competition**) is a selection on the basis of competitive cultural and artistic projects involving the following stages: 1) technical selection, 2) expert selection, 3) approval of decisions of expert councils by the Foundation's Directorate through negotiation procedures, 4) approval by Foundation's Supervisory Board of decisions made by Expert Councils and validated by Foundation's Directorate on projects with the cost exceeding 150 minimum wages. For details on the stages of the selection process and the evaluation criteria, see the relevant section of these Guidelines (page 21).

**Grant -** financial resources provided on a gratuitous and non-refundable basis by the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation to an entity carrying out its activities in the cultural area for the project implementation.

**Co-financing** - attracting resources exclusively in monetary form from other sources not prohibited by law, which are not grant funds of the Foundation and used by the applicant and partners to achieve the project goals and outcomes. Project co-financing may be provided by the applicant itself or partner(s) and/or third party.

**Grant Agreement -** a template of the Grant Agreement is approved by the central executive body ensuring the formation and implementation of state policy in culture

and arts.

Essential term for the Grant Agreement is the definition of the specific project for which the funds are provided; the amount of the grant (amount of funds) with the corresponding cost estimate, indicating the objects for which it will be spent; payment schedule; obligation of the person receiving the funds, including reporting; minimum technical requirements for the project to be met; term of grant implementation; procedure for providing evidence to confirm the proper performance of the Grant Agreement; liability for breach of the Agreement.

**Grantee (grant receiver)** - an applicant who has received funding from the Foundation to implement the project under the terms of the Grant Agreement.

**Video game** means a digital game that uses video simulation, in which the player interacts with user interface to receive response from video device.

**Demo version** means the conceptual design, designing and game development stage of game production. The output at this stage is a simplified, short version of the game with very limited functionality designed purely for surface demonstration of a future product.

**Animation game** means a digital game made using cartoon or picture-drawing technology in an animated form, in which the player interacts with a video device through a user interface.

**Alpha version of the software** means a software production stage of a software product that has already been developed and is provided to users to evaluate its functionality for detection of defects and errors. The alpha version may not contain all the features of a future software.

**Beta version of the software** means a production stage of a software product that has already been pre-tested and debugged and is near-finished. Beta version is intended for the final testing of the full-featured software before the release.

Release means the final, ready-to-release version of the game.

### Note!

In 2020, the following rule applies:

# Each applicant may submit up to 3 application packages for competitive program, but no more than 10 application packages for all programs.

This means that a single legal entity or entrepreneur may be an applicant for all competitive programs at the same time and may submit up to 3 application packages for competitive program, but not more than 10 application packages for all programs.

Thus, the projects submitted from one applicant to different competitive programs must have different titles, goals, objectives, results, and different project team members.

If several projects of the same applicant win within a competitive program, the Foundation will support up to 3 projects within the program, but not more than 5 projects within all competitive programs from one applicant.

# All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

### IV. About "Audiovisual Arts" program

Audiovisual Arts Programme is implemented in the following **priority areas of the Foundation's activities:** 

1. Creating favourable conditions for facilitation of creative activities, partnership development and formation of common values of the civil society in Ukraine.

2. Ensuring the comprehensive development and functioning of the Ukrainian language in all spheres of social life on the territory of Ukraine, as well as promoting the study of the Ukrainian language abroad.

3. Promoting development of educational initiatives, implementation of innovations, information and digital technologies in the sphere of culture.

The Programme aims to support and develop the Ukrainian audiovisual sector, advanced multimedia technologies, Ukrainian television and radio broadcasting, to encourage artists to create competitive products and to promote the Ukrainian audiovisual sector abroad.

Focus: educational, cultural, artistic and social content, including the issues concerning countering fake news and infowars.

Over the past two years, the Foundation has supported 225 audiovisual projects such as "Ukraïner. The Movie", "Production and postproduction of the film concert Rozdilovi live" (Rozdilovi Nazhyvo), "Bad Roads".

Budget of the Programme for 2020 is UAH 70 million

### Aims of Audiovisual Arts Programme:

- To develop Ukrainian audiovisual products;
- To develop foreign audiovisual products about Ukraine;
- To develop Ukrainian media content;
- To create multimedia content using advanced immersive technologies.

### The 2020 Audiovisual Arts competitive program includes the following LOTs:

- LOT 1. TV content
- LOT 2. Radio content
- LOT 3. Multimedia technologies
- LOT 4. Video content for alternative media platforms
- LOT 5. Video games and applications

### Competitive selection calendar and project implementation deadlines

	Start	Finish		
Submission of application packages on- line only	01.11.2019	15.01.2020		
Information campaign	01.11.2019	15.01.2020		
Publication of the register of received application packages	till 20.0	1.2020		
Selection of projects for compliance with the technical criteria	16.01.2020	07.02.2020		
Announcement in the applicant's account online about the application package status after technical selection	till 10.02.2020			
Publication of the project register by the results of the selection of projects for compliance with the technical criteria	till 10.02.2020			
Expert project evaluation by the Foundation's expert councils	16.01.2020	10.03.2020		
Announcement in the applicant's account online with the scores of the application package after the expert evaluation	till 27.03.2020			
Publication of a rating register of all projects after expert evaluation	till 27.03.2020			
Approval of decisions of expert councils by the Foundation's Directorate (through negotiation procedures) and approval by the UCF Supervisory Board	30.03.2020	30.04.2020		

Signing of Grant Agreements and publication of the list of winning projects	till 11.05.2020			
Project implementation including reporting.	from the date 30. of signing the Grant Agreement, but no earlier than 30.04.2020	10.2020		

### V. About LOT «Video games and applications»

### Total budget<sup>1</sup> of the LOT 5 is UAH 20 million

Minimum grant amount (not subject to decrease) is UAH 500,000 Maximum grant amount (not subject to increase) is UAH 10 million

### LOT support priorities:

- Creation of cultural, social, educational animation or video games and mobile applications.
- The scope of the LOT includes the audiovisual art projects.

### LOT products:

- Animation game at the stage of development and production of a demo version (demand analysis, game description, development and design);
- Animation game release available on the applicant's website and on AppStore or PlayMarket;
- Video game at the stage of development and production of a demo version (demand analysis, game description, development and design);
- Video game release available on the applicant's website and on AppStore or PlayMarket;
- Mobile application at the stage of development and production of a demo version (demand analysis, game description, development and design);
- Mobile application release available on the applicant's website and on AppStore or PlayMarket;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> UCF reserves the right not to spend all the funds provided for under this program

### All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

### Program applicants may include:

developers of software and other IT solutions associated with the LOT content.

**LOT beneficiaries** are the consumers of video and animation games, mobile applications.

### Expected short-term results of the LOT:

- Supporting animation or video game, mobile application development projects;
- Attracting new audiences to consume cultural products.

### **Expected long-term results of the LOT:**

- Young people willingly identify themselves with the Ukrainian nation and culture through the consumption of accessible and useful interactive content;
- Implementation of socially important initiatives using modern tools (games, mobile applications).

### VI. Project types

You may choose the type of project that you intend to implement. Please note that different types of projects have different funding conditions.

**1. Individual project** is a cultural and artistic project implemented with the initiative and participation of one applicant. According to the Foundation's rules, co-financing for individual projects is optional, and therefore the grant amount can be 100% of the project budget. **This type of project is open to applications by individual entrepreneurs.** 

2. National cooperation project is a cultural and artistic project that involves partner project realization in two or more regions of Ukraine. The minimum partnership should include one applicant and one partner from different regions of Ukraine. The applicant and partner of this type of project may not be an individual entrepreneur.

In accordance with the funding principles, UCF grants an equivalent to 80% of the project budget for national projects; co-financing has to be 20% of the project budget.

So the budget formula for the national cooperation project is:

```
Всі англомовні документи ТІЛЬКИ ДЛЯ ОЗНАЙОМЛЕННЯ зацікавлених сторін
(партнерів, донорів, надавачам співфінансування та ін.).
All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners,
donors, co-financing partners, etc.)
```

grant (80%) + co-financing (20%) = project budget (100%).

**3.International cooperation project** is a cultural and artistic project that involves the implementation of a project in Ukraine and/or abroad in partnership with other organizations. In this case, the applicant must be a Ukrainian resident and one of the partners - a non-resident. The applicant and partner of this type of project may not be an individual entrepreneur.

In accordance with the funding principles, the UCF grants an equivalent to 70% of the project budget for international projects; co-financing has to be 30% of the project budget.

So the budget formula for the international cooperation project is:

### grant (70%) + co-financing (30%) = project budget (100%).

### **VII. Requirements to applicants and partners**

The applicants of the «Video games and applications» LOT may be legal entities of all forms of ownership, individual entrepreneurs (single tax payers of group III), duly registered in the territory of Ukraine in accordance with the current legislation for not less than **two years** prior to the date of the competition announcement and have experience in cultural sector.

**The partner** in the projects of national and international cooperation can be a legal entity of all forms of ownership, registered for at least **two years** prior to the date of the competition announcement and has experience in culture.

The following entities are not eligible to participate in projects and receive funding from the Foundation

- political parties and associations;
- religious organizations;
- legal entities and individual entrepreneurs declared bankrupt, or in respect of which bankruptcy proceedings have been initiated;
- legal entities and individual entrepreneurs who are in the stage of windingup/liquidation of a legal entity or termination of entrepreneurial activity of an individual entrepreneur;
- authorized persons of a legal entity and individuals who have criminal convictions for committing crimes in the economic activity, not removed or cancelled in accordance with the procedure established by law;
- authorized persons of a legal entity and individuals who have a criminal record for committing crimes in public service and professional activity, not removed or cancelled in accordance with the procedure established by law;
- authorized persons of a legal entity and individuals who have criminal convictions, not removed or cancelled in accordance with the procedure established by law;
- legal entities and individuals to whom restrictive measures (sanctions) have been applied, determined by the resolution of the National Security and Defense Council of Ukraine and enacted by the Decree of the President of Ukraine in accordance with the Law of Ukraine "On Sanctions";
- applicants who have arrears to the budget, the Pension Foundation of Ukraine, the Compulsory State Social Insurance Foundation, or who have overdue payroll arrears, other payables;
- applicants regarding which there are pending enforcement proceedings at the time of application.

# All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

VIII. Required documents for submission of the application package of «Video games and applications» LOT

- project application (electronic form to be filled in at the UCF website);
- Annex 1 to the project application "Work plan and Project Deadlines" (PDF document);
- Annex 2.1 to the project application "Portfolio of creative team" (PDF document);
- Annex 2.2 to the project application "Description of product" (PDF document)
- project cost estimates (EXCEL table made according to the page of the relevant competitive program);
- full (extended) excerpt from the USR with up-to-date information at the time of application submission (PDF document).

If you submit a project for national or international cooperation, please also add:

- documents confirming the registration of the partner organization (scan-copy in PDF);
- letter (s) of intention to cooperate with partner (s) (scan of original in PDF) Sample Letter - XIX. Annex 5;
- The project co-financing guarantee letter provided by the applicant, indicating the sources of co-financing (scanned copy of the original in PDF) sample letter X. Annex 6.

### Note!

Documents provided in the original language must be translated into Ukrainian and certified (notary or translation agency).

### IX. How to submit an application package to a competitive program

### Tip

Before starting to complete the project application, estimates and prepare other documents, it is advisable to thoroughly study all the requirements and rules of the competitive selection.

The application package for submission to the Foundation's competitive selection is - a project application + estimate + excerpt from the USR + mandatory attachments.

# All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

The application package is submitted only in electronic form through the official website of the <u>Ukrainian Cultural Foundation</u>. The application package submitted shall be signed by an **electronic digital signature of the director of applicant's organization**.

To submit an application package, the applicant must <u>create an online account</u> on the Foundation's website. If such account has already been created, you can use it (there is a service - password recovery).

When you create an account, you are automatically directed to the main page of the website to select the appropriate competitive program  $\rightarrow$  Program Selection  $\rightarrow$  Project Type Selection. After these three steps, you will see "**Apply**" button on the right side of the screen. When you press the button, you will be directed to the electronic application form.

The online application form has an auto-save option (*please make sure you are online when filling in!*), so you can work with it in from your personal online account.

In the electronic application form, in the special box, download the cost estimate, the required project application attachments and the required documents. After filling in all the fields of the project application, downloading the estimates and the attachments, the electronic digital signature of the **director of applicant's organization** is applied in the respective field and the "Submit" button is pressed.

After submitting the application package, the applicant receives an e-mail regarding the successful submission of the competition, indicating the project number assigned by the system

### Tip

We advise you to read the application questions and cost estimate forms, mandatory attachments and spend enough time to fill them in to state the idea of your project clearly, to fill in the work plan and the cost estimate correctly.

After submitting an application packet to the Foundation, you can monitor its status at various stages of competitive selection. Please check your application package status - the competition calendar will help you with this, as it specifies the deadlines for the Foundation's notices as a result of the competitive selection stages.

### **Project application**

The project application is filled in electronically. Please check in advance in your personal online account the list of questions that you will need to answer. We also

## All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

recommend that you read the Expert Evaluation Methodology to help you understand how to correctly answer the application form questions to which the evaluation applies.

The project application has built-in tips for the correct filling of its fields - if the format of the field does not meet the expected (letters instead of numbers, etc.), the system will block sending of the application package.

#### Note!

The application is available for adjustment until it is submitted to the Foundation. Once submitted, you will not be able to make any amendments to the application text or the downloaded documents. Moreover, you cannot resubmit a self-corrected application package - the system automatically blocks this option. In this regard, we recommend that you check all documents before submitting.

### Cost estimate

Please download the EXCEL cost estimate form. The cost estimate shall be submitted exclusively in the form established by the Foundation. Please note that the detailed **instructions** for completing the estimate are **one of the tabs** of the downloaded file - please read these recommendations carefully, they will help you to estimate the project according to the Foundation's requirements. The Foundation strongly recommends engaging the organization's accountant at the stage of the project's cost estimate - all recommendations for completing it are stated in accordance with accounting rules and using appropriate terminology.

Form the cost estimate based on the principles of efficient and rational use of public funds. In practice, this means that all expenses must be cost-effective and aimed solely to achieve the goals and objectives of your project.

Please note that the Foundation shall transfer **the grant in two stages**: no more than 70% at the beginning of the project and the corresponding balance after reporting subject to 100% of the project budget execution. Therefore, we ask that you carefully plan your expenses, taking into account this essential condition for funding.

The cost estimate in the UCF grant cost section include only **eligible costs** (a list of eligible and non-eligible costs is given below). Costs that are non-eligible may be entered in the "Co-financing Expenses" column.

Costs that meet all of the following criteria are **eligible:** 

- costs required for the project implementation;

### All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

• costs that comply with the principles of efficient and rational use of public funds;

• costs that will actually be incurred during the implementation of this project; the project implementation period is defined as the period from the date of signing of the Grant Agreement by both parties up to the submission date of the final financial reporting (but no later than the final date of the project implementation specified in the Grant Agreement);

• costs that will be reflected in the accounting of the grant beneficiary (its partners) must be identified and supported by original documents or duly-certified copies;

- costs under the project cost estimate, namely:
- remuneration and social contributions;
- costs associated with business trips of the applicant organization staff;
- equipment with a service life of more than one year, but which is not a fixed asset in value terms;
- costs associated with renting (premises, equipment and tools, stage production, transportation);
- food costs;
- material costs;
- printing services;
- promotion services;
- web resource creation services;
- purchase of methodological, educational and informational materials, including on electronic media;
- translation services;
- other expenses.

List of prohibited costs at the expense of the grant (**non-eligible costs**):

- purchase of goods, performance of works, provision of services unrelated to the project implementation;
- costs for payment of intermediary services
- costs for payment of goods, works and services that have already been or will be financed from other sources, before or after the Grant Agreement is signed (double financing);
- costs associated with the implementation of profit-making projects (except for projects related to film production);
- costs of maintaining institutions, organizations, including those involved in projects;
- costs for the acquisition of fixed assets (including office furniture), intangible assets (except for the creation of websites);
- costs for major repairs, construction works, development of design estimates;
- cost of preparing a project application for submission to the Foundation's competitive program;
- losses resulting from exchange differences.

All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

• costs incurred between related parties, the relationships between which may affect the conditions, or the economic results of their activities or the activities of the persons they represent.

### Please note!

There are **limits to certain cost estimate items**, namely:

• salaries of full-time employees: the salary amount is set on the basis of the Uniform Salary Schedule according to the <u>CMU Resolution No. 1298</u> of 30.08.2002, the payment of a bonus is not more than 100% of the salary amount according to the Uniform Salary Schedule in the presence of the Regulation on bonuses and schedule of employees' work with an indication of additional workload;

• the maximum amount of services provided under a civil law contract may not exceed UAH 25,000.00 (twenty-five thousand) per person a month; if the amount of services provided under a civil law contract includes compensation for the travel, accommodation and meals of the person, then the maximum amount **may be increased by the amount of these costs;** costs associated with the business trips of full-time employees, shall be established

in accordance with the norms of the <u>CMU Resolution No.98 of 02.02.2011</u>

• costs for the purchase of equipment, tools, materials are made in the amount up to UAH 6000.00 (six thousand) exclusive of VAT per unit and are accounted for on the balance sheet as low value and non-durable items;

• catering services: at the rate of UAH 150 (one hundred and fifty) per person per day, with obligatory submission of copies of registration lists with signatures of participants;

• When planning the project cost estimate, remember that if the amount of goods, works, services provided by a legal entity or entrepreneur is equal to or exceeds UAH 30,000.00 (thirty thousand), then at the **time of reporting this amount** must be confirmed by three commercial quotes from other suppliers of goods, works, services to which the grant beneficiary referred to study the price market of offers.

### Work plan and project implementation deadlines

The structured document used for administrative project management shall be amended only as a result of approving the amendment requests.

It determines all necessary parameters of the project implementation, namely: types of activities, duration of their implementation, need for human and financial resources, performance verification indicators. The document is the basis for evaluating and monitoring the project progress.

For ease of reference, we recommend that you use the landscape layout of the page

in a Word document.

An Annex to these guidelines is a sample work plan - please adjust it to your project needs.

**Portfolio of the creative team** of the project is a collection of completed works and achievements of the creative team (with active links to them).

**Product Description** A detailed description of a future product that contains information about the idea, purpose, content, vision of the creative team on product development.

# **X.** Stages of the competition and criteria for technical selection of projects

According to the <u>Procedure for Competitive Selection of Projects</u>, competitive selection of projects is carried out in four consecutive stages:

1.technical selection;

2.expert selection;

3.approval by the Directorate of decisions of Expert councils through negotiation procedures;

4.approval by the Foundation's Supervisory Board of decisions made by Expert Councils and validated by Foundation's Directorate on the projects the cost of which exceeds the 150 minimum wages established by the Law on the State Budget of Ukraine as of January 1 of the respective year.

### **Technical selection of projects**

At this stage, the application package is analyzed for compliance with the technical selection criteria.

**The technical criteria** for the competitive selection of projects determine that the application package:

• submitted through the Foundation's official website ucf.in.ua within the deadline;

• submitted as a complete set (requirements to the application package of the Program / LOT);

• submitted in Ukrainian, and in the case of documents submitted in foreign languages, contains a translation of such documents into Ukrainian, duly certified (by notary or translation bureau);

• submitted by the applicant, who meets the requirements to the applicants

# All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

(a complete list of requirements to applicants is set out in paragraph 5 of the "Procedure for Competitive Selection of Projects");

• includes an estimate with two completed sheets and submitted in the

format provided by the Foundation in EXCEL format.

### Note!

Application packages that do not meet at **least one of the technical criteria** are not eligible for expert evaluation.

The applicant will be able to see the results of the project selection according to the technical criteria as his application package status in his personal online account, and will receive a notification to the e-mail that was indicated during registration on the official website.

The consideration of the application package at this stage shall result in either:

- the application package meets the technical criteria, is submitted to the experts of the relevant UCF expert council for consideration, or
- the application package does not meet the technical criteria and is considered to have failed technical selection.

Applicants' requests regarding technical selection results may be submitted within a 5-day period from the time the Foundation sends an email about the technical selection results.

According to the results of the technical selection, a register is made and published on the official website of the Foundation.

### **XI. Evaluation of projects by experts of the UCF expert councils**

After successful technical selection, the application package is submitted for evaluation by the expert council of the relevant program of the Foundation.

The application packages are evaluated by the Foundation's experts in accordance with the Regulation on the Foundation's expert councils, the Project Evaluation Methodology, taking into account the criteria for the funding purpose and these Guidelines.

### Note!

The applicant is prohibited from contacting experts during the evaluation process and influencing their decisions.

All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

According to the Conflict of Interest Notice Procedure, an expert may not be an applicant or participant in a project of the program in whose evaluation he or she was involved, but the Foundation's expert may be an applicant or project participant of other programs which he/she has not evaluated.

Each project is evaluated in parallel by five experts from the relevant sector and the relevant expert council. The maximum number of points from one expert is 100. Accordingly, the maximum number of points after project evaluation by five experts is 500, which is the sum of points of all experts. Projects that have received expert evaluation of less than 200 points shall not be supported by UCF.

In the personal online account, the applicant receives expert comments and evaluation points. The overall rating of the Program will be generated after the evaluation of all application packages in which the applicant receives a rank. Rating registers based on expert evaluation results are published on the official website of the Foundation.

The projects will be funded in accordance with the rating and within the allocated state funding (or the amount of special fund). According to the rating register and the budget allocated for the LOT / Program implementation, the Foundation's Directorate resolution will determine the projects approved for negotiation procedures.

Please note that even if funds are available, projects that have obtained 200 points or less following the expert evaluation are considered as non-eligible for funding and cannot be recommended by the Foundation's experts in accordance with the Expert Evaluation Methodology.

Please refer to the <u>Expert Evaluation Methodology</u> to find out more on expert work rules and evaluation criteria.

The competitive selection procedure does not provide for the procedure for challenging the results of expert evaluation.

# Approval of the decision of the expert councils by the Directorate by means of negotiating procedures

The decisions of expert councils regarding the terms, mechanisms, scope of UCF support shall be approved by means of negotiation procedures with the applicant through the applicant's personal online account, in some cases the negotiation procedure can take place as a personal meeting of negotiating committee with the applicant.

If necessary, the applicant will be sent a list of comments on the application package, taking into account the recommendations of the experts, which he should

## All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

eliminate before signing the Grant Agreement. Full consideration of these comments is a prerequisite for signing the Grant Agreement.

Before signing the Grant Agreement, the applicant must submit the following list of documents through a personal online account:

- a project application with all the required annexes and a planned cost estimate, taking into account the comments and recommendations of the expert councils and the negotiating committee;
- a copy of the certificate on opening a new separate bank account for grant funds or a certificate from the bank on a zero balance account and a bank statement to confirm the absence of funds movement during the last 3 (three) months;
- a copy of the certificate from other servicing banks on the absence of debt on loans and interest (if any);
- a copy of an extract from the Unified State Register of Legal Entities, Individual Entrepreneurs and Public Formations, generated in the period from the date of receipt of the electronic invitation letter and until the date of negotiation procedures, in full, indicating the full list of information from the USR;
- a copy of the charter or other constituent instrument (as amended) in the current version at the date of the negotiation procedure;
- a copy of the passport and identification number of the director of the legal entity (or individual entrepreneur), orders for the appointment of the director;
- a copy of the document authorizing the manager to sign contracts and financial documents in the amount of more than UAH 50 thousand, if such restrictions exist;
- a copy of the certificate from the State Fiscal Service at the place of registration on the absence of arrears on taxes and fees (compulsory payments);
- the applicant's certificate, in an arbitrary form, on the absence of arrears on wages, signed by the director and the accountant (if any), sealed (if any);
- the applicant's certificate, in an arbitrary form, on the absence of debt on loans;
- in case of project co-financing, the Applicant must provide supporting documents for co-financing. Such documents may include a grant agreement, a partnership and co-financing agreement, an applicant's guarantee letter for co-financing at its own expense.
- letter of consent in any form for the processing, use, distribution and access to personal data. Such consent is given separately by each person who submits his or her personal data.
- **NOTE!** An excerpt from a regulation that defines the goals and area of the region's development in the field of culture and tourism in the medium and long term. In other words, an excerpt from a strategy/plan/socio-economic development program/target program/other document to confirm that the project implementation is in line with the goals and area of the region's development specified in this document.

### All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

**Final stage:** approval by Foundation's Supervisory Board of decisions made by Expert Councils and validated by Foundation's Directorate on the projects the cost of which exceeds 150 minimum wages, established by the Law on the State Budget of Ukraine as of January 1, 2020. After approval of the decisions of the expert councils, the Directorate shall assign funding for the implementation of projects, and the Grant Agreement is concluded with the applicant

### XII. Grant management rules

#### Note!

The grant beneficiary shall involve the professional accountant in the accounting of expenses for the project.

Projects submitted to UCF competitions cannot be funded by any other donor or organization for the same type of expenses. Should the double financing at any stage of the competition or the project implementation be discovered it will lead to the exclusion of the project from the competition or termination of the Grant Agreement. If this is established at the reporting stage, the grant recipient agrees to repay to the UCF the funds previously transferred to it under the Grant Agreement.

Once the Grant Agreement is signed, it is prohibited:

- increase the number of team members, except for those team members who participate on a free or co-financing basis;
- change the functional responsibilities of team members;
- increase the amount of wages, salaries under labour and civil law contracts;
- amend and add new items of expenses not provided for in the cost estimate without the Foundation's consent;
- modify the items of the agreed estimate by more than **10% of the grant amount** without the Foundation's approval (the grant amount cannot be increased).

# After the Grant Agreement is signed, the grant beneficiary receives a payment not exceeding 70% of the grant amount for the project implementation.

Upon project completion, the grant beneficiary shall submit to the UCF the <u>final</u> <u>reporting documents</u> on the 100% completion of the project implementation along with the independent auditor's report for the total grant amount. Within 30 (thirty) calendar days, the Foundation reviews and analyzes the project reports and sends comments, if any, to the grant beneficiary, who must respond within a specified time to all comments and provide the necessary documents specified in the letter. The balance of funds under the Grant Agreement is transferred to the recipient **after signing the Project Implementation Act.** 

During the project implementation on the co-financing terms, the grant beneficiary reflects **in the cost estimate both the volume of the UCF grant and co-financing** - with the indication of sources, the list and the amount of expenses in quantitative and monetary terms.

The grant beneficiary shall include in the books and put into operation the equipment (low value items and nondurables) to be acquired during the project implementation at the grant expense and at the expense of co-financing, as well as the fixed assets that can be purchased at the expense of co-financing.

The grant beneficiary shall be responsible for keeping records of project implementation costs on the basis of properly executed primary documents. The grant beneficiary calculates the cost of implementation of the grant project in accordance with the provisions of the Accounting Standards (Standard) 16 "Expenditures" and taking into account the rules of the Budget, Tax Codes of Ukraine, Code of Laws of Ukraine on Accounting, Law of Ukraine "On Accounting and Financial Statements in Ukraine" and other regulations.

The grant beneficiary shall be responsible for the information provided in the cost estimate and the report on the use of the grant amount. The grant beneficiary **shall be solely responsible** for the obligations to third parties that arose during the grant project implementation.

During the implementation of the cultural and artistic project by the applicant, the Foundation monitors its implementation, including by monitoring the project activities (in accordance with the <u>Procedure for control over</u> the performance of obligations to the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation by entities that receive funding. Should violations of the project terms, violation of the conditions of use of funds be discovered or other circumstances specified in the Agreement occur, the UCF's Directorate may decide to terminate the Agreement, terminate funding with the grant beneficiary obligation to repay the grant.

The grant beneficiary shall adhere to the UCF Communication Guidelines, UCF Brand <u>Guidelines</u> and the <u>Foundation's Communication Strategy</u>.

### XIII. Reporting procedure

Prior to submitting the **final reporting documents** to the UCF, the grant beneficiary must complete the final monitoring form on the project implementation results in a personal online account on the Foundation's website. These data are necessary, including to measure the Foundation's performance and to confirm the efficiency of use of funds.

The Foundation strongly recommends not to forget about the internal monitoring of your projects in order to collect up-to-date data on quantitative audience reach at public events of the project or during a promotional campaign, etc. To facilitate the data collection process, the Foundation has developed two standard questionnaires

## All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

for the event visitor. You can combine these questionnaires yourself or add questions. Questionnaire forms are attached hereto.

### (XVII. Annex 3, XVIII. Annex 4).

After the project is completed, the grant beneficiary, through a personal online account, submits to the Foundation's website the **final reporting documents**, which consist of a summary report and a financial report.

The **Summary Report** is a document that sets out in a descriptive form the completeness of achieving the goal, objectives and all key outcomes of the project.

### The **Summary Report** contains:

- a summary report annexed to the Grant Agreement;
- materials confirming the project implementation and samples of final products resulting from the project implementation;
- a brief descriptive report of the project communication plan implementation and project progress.

**The financial report** confirmed by the independent auditor's report on the use of the grant amount shall be prepared in accordance with the Foundation's requirements and reflects the use of funds for project implementation activities.

If the auditor accepts (included in the expenses) documents that do not meet the requirements of the current legislation or confirm the use of grant funds for intended purpose, are incorrectly filled in, such expenses will be considered non-eligible or cannot be classified as grant-funded expenditures. In this case, the costs of the audit services will not be funded by grant funds.

### The financial report confirmed by the independent auditor's report, contains:

- independent auditor's opinion;
- report on the use of the grant amount (annex to the Grant Agreement);
- a register of documents certifying the accuracy of expenses and the targeted use of the grant and co-financing (if any). The register is made in the form of a table showing the expenses, counterparties and their identification codes, planned amounts of expenses, the amount of expenses according to the contract, the name and date of the contract, the certificate or bill of lading with number and date, amount of payment, payment order) form of the table is an Annex hereto;
- duly certified copies of:
  - accounting registers;
  - bank (treasury) statements

### All English documents ONLY FOR THE REFERENCE of interested parties (partners, donors, co-financing partners, etc.)

all primary documents confirming the costs incurred by the grant beneficiary for the project implementation.

**The financial report** confirmed by the independent auditor's report contains endto-end numbering and is formed solely on A4 sheets in accordance with the structure outlined above with punching without paper clips, staples and files. It is further bound and sealed by an independent auditor's seal.

The paper version of the final statement of documents, along with all materials and samples of final products (if any) must be delivered by the grantee via the courier delivery service to the Foundation.

The applicant shall submit through the personal online account the Summary Report in DOC format, Grant Use Report in EXCEL format.

#### Note!

•

The final reporting package must be submitted to the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation no later than 30.10.2020 **inclusive.** The Foundation's working hours are from 9.00 am to 6.00 pm.

The final reporting package on the project implementation must be delivered by the courier service to the Foundation:

"Audiovisual Arts", Ukrainian Cultural Foundation, 10-12 Lavrska str., Kyiv-01010

### **XIV.** Checklist for applicants

Application package	Cł	leck	
Project application (filled in the personal online account)	Yes 🗆	No	
Annex 1. Work plan and timeline (PDF)	Yes 🗆	No	
Annex 2.1 Portfolio of the creative team	Yes 🗆	No	
Annex 2.2 Product description	Yes □	No	
Cost estimate (EXCEL) with 2 table sheets filled in	Yes 🗆	No	
Full (extended) excerpt from the USR with up-to-date information at the time of application (PDF)	Yes 🗆	No	
in <b>case of partnership</b> Copy of documents confirming registration of the partner organization (PDF)	Yes 🗆	No	
in <b>case of a partnership</b> Letter (s) of intention to be a partner (PDF) - an example in the annex to the Instruction	Yes 🗆	No	
in <b>case of co-financing</b> A guarantee letter confirming co-financing with the signatures of the co-financing party (PDF) is an example in the Annex to the Instruction	Yes 🗆	No	

### XV.Annex 1

#### Annex 1:

### WORK PLAN AND IMPLEMENTATION DEADLINES

SAMPLE

#### Instruction for the applicant:

1.The work plan and the project implementation deadlines are a mandatory Annex to the application of "Audiovisual arts" program.

2.To be completed in accordance with the needs of the project submitted for the UCF grant

<b>Event, type of activity</b> (to be filled according to project needs)	05.2020	06.2020	07.2020	 Responsible team member	Performance check indicators	Event budget (UAH)
1. Registration of contractual relationships with team members						
2. Stage of preparation of the concept of the project/ festival/cultural route						
2.1. Determination of idea						
2.2						
3. Product development/production						
3.1						
4. Information support						
4.1. Placing a press announcement						
4.2. Creating FB/Instagram page						
4.3						
5. Reporting preparation						
5.1. Preparation of the financial report						
5.2. Preparation of the summary report						
5.3. Preparation of the auditor's opinion						
6						
7						

XVI.Annex 2

**Annex 2.1:** 

### PORTFOLIO OF CRETIVE TEAM

Instruction for the applicant:

1. The Portfolio of creative team is a mandatory Annex to the application of "Audiovisual arts" program.

2.To be completed in accordance with the needs of the project submitted for the UCF grant

Collection of completed works and achievements of the creative team (with active links to them).

### Annex 2.2:

### **PRODUCT DESCRIPTION**

#### **Instruction for the applicant:**

1.The Product description is a mandatory Annex to the application of "Audiovisual arts" program.2.To be completed in accordance with the needs of the project submitted for the UCF grant

A detailed description of a future product that contains information about the idea, purpose, content, vision of the creative team on product development. Can be presented including script, synopsis and the like.

- 1. Actuality of the product (why the product is important)
- 2. Product problematics (what problems does product refer to or solves)
- 3. Idea
- 4. Aim
- 5. Main contents
- 6. Artistic value of the product (project)
- 7. How the project will be realized?
- 8. Who is project targeted at?
- 9. What is the vision of future development of the project?
- 10. How project will influence culture and society in general?

### XVII. Annex 3

### Portrait of a visitor to the UCF-supported event

#### (name)

Welcome to our event!

Please spare a few minutes for a short survey.

The questionnaire is anonymous and all data will be analyzed in a generalized manner

- 1. Please indicate your age group:
- 2.Your gender::

F\_\_\_\_\_

М

 18 - 24
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

 25 - 34
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

 35 - 44
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

 45 - 54
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

 55 - 64
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

 65 - 74
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

 75+
 \_\_\_\_\_\_

#### 3. Your education:

- Elementary (less than 7 classes)
- Complete secondary
- Student
- Complete higher
- 4. Which of the following better describes your current employment status?:
- Worker, agricultural worker
- Employee (non-physical work that does not require higher education)
- Specialist (non-physical work requiring higher education)
- Occupied with individual activity
- Entrepreneur, owner of his business, farmer
- Serviceman, law enforcement officer
- Housekeeping
- Retired (by age, due to disability)
- I study (student)
- Looking for a job (unemployed)
- Other (please specify)

1.Are you a represe	ntative of the ethnic	
minority in Ukraine	?	
Yes	No	

2.Do you have any disability: Yes\_\_\_\_No\_\_\_\_

3.Do you live in the locality where the event takes place?

Yes \_\_\_\_\_ No\_\_\_\_

#### Thank you very much for your answers!

### XVIII. Annex 4

### Questionnaire for a visitor to the UCF-supported event

				(na	ame)				
The	questionn		ase spare and spare a				•	ralized ma	anner.
1. Ha Yes	ave you att		events of (	organizati	on name) l	before			
2. D Yes	o you kno		event is su No, learn	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••			Foundatio	n?	
3. Yo	our level o	f satisfacti	on with the	e event?					
-	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
4. P.	lease evalu		ery dissat			olutely sa	tisfied»		
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
	1	– «very p	oorly-or	ganized»,	a 10 – «v	very well-	organize	d»	1
5. If	a similar e	vent happe	ens in the f	uture, how	likely are	you to atte	end it?		
	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
		1 – «hig	ghly unlik	kely», 10 -	– «I will o	definitely	visit it»		

6. What did you like the most?

7. Any possible improvements in the event organization:

### Thank you very much for your answers!

XIX. Annex 5

SAMPLE

OFFICIAL HEADING (for availability)

Date, city, number

Ukrainian Cultural Foundation Competitive program "NAME"

### **Cooperation and Partnership Intent Protocol**

ORGANIZATION NAME (hereinafter - Applicant), PARTNER NAME (hereinafter - Partner), we hereby guarantee, in case of winning in the competitive selection of projects of the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation, partnership with the Applicant with the intention of creating a partnership for cooperation in the joint implementation of the PROJECT NAME (hereinafter collectively - Parties).

In order to achieve the common objective, the Parties have signed this Protocol of Intent on Cooperation and Partnership (hereinafter - Protocol) and have agreed to fulfill the following objectives:

1...

2...

3. The Parties will provide each other with the information necessary for effective cooperation.

4. The Parties acknowledge and confirm that, within the limits of their respective powers, they will take care of ensuring the fulfillment of the objectives of this Protocol and will work together to implement it.

Signature of the authorized person of the applicant organization Seal (if available)

Signature of the authorized person of the partner organization Seal (if available)

35

XX. Annex 6

SAMPLE

### OFFICIAL HEADING (for availability)

Date, city, number

Ukrainian Cultural Foundation Competitive program "NAME"

#### **Guarantee Letter**

This letter guarantees in case of winning in the competitive selection of projects of the Ukrainian Cultural Foundation (hereinafter - the Foundation) co-financing of the project "PROJECT NAME" in the amount of 00.00 (amount in words) UAH, which is ...% of the total budget of the project. Co-financing, in accordance with the terms of the Foundation, is provided in monetary from the following source (or sources):... (e.g. personal funds of the applicant organization, sponsorship funds, grant from another organization, etc.).

In case of refusal of co-financing or non-payment in due time, this guarantee letter shall be considered as confirmation of the fact that the Applicant assumes responsibility for the full implementation of the PROJECT NAME.

Signature of the authorized person of the applicant organization Seal (if available)